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Date: November 13, 2019 
 
Attendance 
 Present: Dave Decker, Monica O’Brien, Tony Harris, Steve Yates, Matt Ressler and Anthony Harrell  
 Excused Absence: Ali DeVries 
 Quorum Present: Yes 
 
Others Present 
 Rob Clarkson and Megan Jackson from the Holishor Office 
 Holishor Members Present: 2 
 
Proceedings 
Meeting called to order at 7:30 PM 
Pledge of Allegiance recited 
 
Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2019 
Steve Yates – Motions to approve the minutes as amended. 
Tony Harris – Seconds. 
All in Favor. 
Motion Carries. 
 
Transfers of Property 
There are four transfers of property. There are three houses and one lot, all which triggered initiation fees. 
 
Bills & Salaries 
Monica O’Brien – Motions to approve Bills & Salaries as submitted. 
Matt Ressler – Seconds. 
All in Favor. 
Motion Carries. 
 
Profit & Loss 
Submitted for review 
 
Manager’s Report 
Read by Rob Clarkson 
 
Public Safety Report 
Read by Rob Clarkson 
 
Old Business 
Golf Carts/Slow Moving Vehicles 
Dave Decker – We have the proposed rule in front of us. Does anyone have any questions or comments?  
Verbiage discussion ensues. 
Golf carts and all-terrain vehicles with valid Holishor decals and lot numbers be allowed on Holiday Shores roads 

where posted speed limit is 35 miles or less. Operators and the slow-moving vehicles must meet the requirements as 

set out in accordance to IL statue (625 ILCS 5/11-1426.1) Vehicle operators must have a valid state driver’s license.  

The vehicle at a minimum, must have the following: brakes, a steering apparatus, tires, a rearview mirror, red 

reflectorized warning devices in the front and rear, a slow moving emblem on the rear of the non-highway vehicle, a 
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headlight that emits a white light visible from a distance of 500 feet to the front, a tail lamp that emits a red light 

visible from at least 100 feet from the rear, brake lights, and turn signals. When operated on a roadway, a non-

highway vehicle shall have its headlight and tail lamps lighted.  The state requires proof of minimum liability 

insurance coverage carried within the vehicle.   

Members in good standing must purchase Holishor decals for the golf carts and all-terrain vehicles that meet 

minimum safety requirements in the Holishor office for $15 annually. 

 
2019 Ditching Project 
Dave Decker – At the last meeting, we had a bid opening. We had one bidder and we turned that over to the office for 
their review. We also have a write up from Rob Clarkson in front of us. Tony Harris – In previous meetings, we discussed 
the estimates that we had from the prior engineering firm until we got the bids in. I know we were thinking the bid 
would be less than what the firm had proposed. It looks like we are coming back in total more. Rob Clarkson – I think it’s 
the fact that we only had one bidder. If we had more bidders, we would have seen a significant difference. Steve Yates – 
Was timing of the bids an issue? Rob Clarkson – One of them actually told me they work with the bidder that we got. 
When they found out they were bidding it, they backed out because they did not want to lose work over it. Steve Yates 
– I understand. Rob Clarkson – The others, I don’t know why they didn’t turn them in. They seemed very interested. I 
just can’t believe everyone is that busy. Dave Decker – I’m confused reading your write up. I thought this bid was under 
what we had estimated? Rob Clarkson – It is under what we estimated from the old engineering. We took out some of 
the work to make it even cheaper. Going forward, it’s hard to see what culvert pipes are actually good. Based on the 
engineer’s recommendation was to take all of them out and replace them. The driveways, some of them did not get 
culverts put back in but it was to remove them in piece, and we decide which ones are good. We would then stock pile 
them for the next section in the lieu of buying new ones. There is an awful lot of culvert pipes in this plan. Dave Decker – 
The bid we submitted included the removing of the culverts or did not include them? Rob Clarkson – They removed 
every single one is what this bid is and replacing them. We would stock pile the good ones that came out to use later 
down the road. Up front, we would pay quite a bit for culvert replacements. The only thing we had them replacing as far 
as driveways went was an asphalt driveway or rock. The concrete where they cut, we are going to have our crew come 
pour that concrete to save money from the contractor doing it. The seeding, we are going to come in behind them and 
seed instead of paying them to do so. Dave Decker – I wasn’t aware we were planning on doing our own concrete work. 
I personally wouldn’t have liked that idea. Our maintenance guys are not concrete guys. Anthony Harrell – Are you 
saying the original quote they gave us included concrete? Rob Clarkson – No, it didn’t. We also added three culverts to 
the plan from the original bid which made our bid higher than the original. Dave Decker – Just for your knowledge 
because you were not involved at the time, when they did the work and had the bids done for replacing culverts on the 
road replacement efforts, the estimate from the Association was higher than it was from the vendor to replace them. 
Rob Clarkson – Ok. My point was that we added three culverts. Dave Decker – I get that we added that but that was 
part of the bid going out, right? I’m just surprised that we took out the concrete work from the bid we were submitting 
out. What I would recommend in the future if we are thinking about doing that, put that on as an add-on so you have a 
choice to see what their cost is, and we can see whether or not we can do better. What is the estimate that we believe 
the concrete work is going to be? Rob Clarkson – I am still working on that and going over square yardage for what the 
concrete cost will be. Dave Decker – What’s the Board’s thoughts on having our crew doing concrete driveways? Tony 
Harris – I would like to get an additional bid from these guys to see what they would charge. All we have is the 
engineer’s estimate, it would be nice to see what these guys are going to charge so we have a comparison number. Rob 
Clarkson – It’s a three-foot cut on a driveway. Monica O’Brien – My concern would be quality, but I know a lot of these 
driveways on Clover are not high quality at all. Dave Decker – But if we are putting them in, they better be. We can’t put 
in low quality concrete work. Tony Harris – I would hope for a three or four-foot-wide cut, it shouldn’t be that bad. Dave 
Decker – How many are we talking about? Rob Clarkson – I’ve gone out and looked at six of them already. Not all of 
them are double driveways either. I’ll have a number for you at the next meeting of the exact cost it would be for us to 
do it minus the labor. Tony Harris – It shouldn’t be that hard to pour. Especially pouring edge to edge and your 
elevations are already there. Rob Clarkson – That’s what I thought. Matt Ressler – I’m fine with us doing it.  
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Steve Yates – I don’t see any reason why we couldn’t do it. Monica O’Brien – That’s what I’m hearing. I feel like you guys 
know what you are doing. Steve Yates – My only draw back of us doing it is if you put it in and the top pops off of it and 
the homeowner wants it replaced, it is still going to be our labor again and our complaint. Just something to think about. 
Anthony Harrell – With concrete, you are guaranteed two things, it’s going to get hard and it’s going to crack. Dave 
Decker – That’s part of the point, it’s going to crack and how we would handle that moving forward. What I heard is get 
a bid from Stutz along with a bid you’re going to put together for having our staff do the work. What I heard from the 
Board is they don’t have any objections to our staff doing the work. Tony Harris – I don’t have a problem with it. Dave 
Decker – What was our budgeted amount for this? Rob Clarkson – I’m pretty sure it was $140,000 and we are right 
underneath it. Dave Decker – We are right underneath it without the concrete work. Rob Clarkson – That is also without 
the three additional culverts that was added to the plan. Dave Decker – I thought we added the additional three culverts 
to the bid? Rob Clarkson – It was in the bid, we did not have it in the original plan. Dave Decker – But they are in the 
bid? Rob Clarkson – Yes. Dave Decker – What kind of timeline do we have in regard to accept Stutz bid? If we decided 
on this in December or January, that’s not an issue? Rob Clarkson – They didn’t tell me that it would be. All I was told 
that they would have it done from their start date to forty-nine days. Dave Decker – How are we doing on the county 
grant work? Rob Clarkson – We are just about finished.  
 
New Business 
Madison County Sheriff Patrol Report 
Dave Decker – We have in our packets the report from the Sheriff’s Office from the two patrol requests of them coming 
out here. Matt Ressler – Madison County was out here on two different occasions. There were ten citations written and 
three warnings given over that period of time. Since they have been out here, my phone has stopped ringing quite a bit. 
We have two more patrols here in the near future also. One issue I would like to address possibly getting a new 
agreement with the Sheriff’s Office that is more updated. Dave Decker – We will reach out to our lawyer for a starting 
point on that.  
 
Ballroom Waiver Request from HSFD 
Dave Decker – The Fire Department is requesting a rental waiver for two of their annual events. The first one is their 
Christmas dinner and award night. The second is their largest fundraiser which is their Chicken & Beer Dance. The 
Christmas dinner is December 17th and the Chicken & Beer Dance is scheduled for January 25th. I expect they have talked 
to the office about the availability of these dates, this is just a request for their rental waiver. They will still pay for their 
cleaning and alcohol fees.  
Steve Yates – Motions to approve the ballroom waiver request as submitted. 
Anthony Harrell – Seconds. 
All in Favor. 
Motion Carries. 
 
Open Floor 
Derelict Vehicles 
Matt Ressler – Derelict vehicles in driveways. I have noticed members are putting tape over their license plates and 
backing them into their driveways so we cannot see the stickers. It is my understanding that only currently registered 
vehicles can be parked on your property. Can we as an Association send those individuals a letter to have them bring 
current proof of registration to the office? We cannot get on their property to check ourselves. We have vehicles around 
the community backed into the driveway that have been sitting for six months or more. Monica O’Brien – Are we talking 
about ones that we have complaints on or just in general? Anthony Harrell – Is this something Public Safety runs across 
often? Dave Decker – They have been more diligent in their efforts to identify derelict vehicles. As they have been doing 
that, I expect they have noticed other vehicles that are very stationary and unable to see license plates to where the 
suspect they are not registered vehicles in working or non-working condition. Is that correct, Rob? Rob Clarkson – Yes. 
Monica O’Brien – I don’t see why we couldn’t send a letter or a phone call. Matt Ressler – Can we have them bring 
proof of current registration? Monica O’Brien – If we feel that it’s not. Dave Decker – We do have rules that says it’s 
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required, and if we decide that is the thing to do then we can do that. Tony Harris – When you say derelict, does that 
also mean vehicles that are not in good shape? Dave Decker – I have seen a couple that have been sitting for at least six 
years or more. Matt Ressler – So we can have Public Safety go out and provide addresses so we can start the fine 
process? Dave Decker – They can always appeal the citation if they were to be issued one. Jerry Theodore, 1346 – I 
wouldn’t narrow it down to just vehicles. I have noticed many boats and trailers out here that are derelict.  
Rob Clarkson – Derelict vehicles include all trailers and watercraft. Boats are a lot easier because they have stickers on 
both sides. Dave Decker – I am not hearing any objections. Anthony Harrell – Nope. Tony Harris – Not at all.  
 
 
Steve Yates – Motions to adjourn to Executive Session. 
Monica O’Brien – Seconds. 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:00 PM 
Meeting Minutes submitted by Megan Jackson. 


